Request for Proposal 

Management/Operation of 

Spring Meadow Golf Course

Wall Township, Monmouth County

Responses to Questions Submitted
Issued:  January 28, 2011
1.3 Structures and Facilities

1. The maintenance shop is described as a one-story building with minor roof leaks.  Will the Department be fixing those leaks?

It will be Operator’s responsibility to make any necessary repairs to the roof of the maintenance building and any other structures on the Golf Course Property, unless specifically noted in the Request for Proposal.

2. It is indicated that the Department shall be responsible for replacing the netting at the driving range subject to the availability of funding.  What happens if the funding is not approved and how will the netting be fixed?

It will be Operator’s responsibility to fix or replace the netting if the Department does not receive funding for those repairs.
3. It is indicated that the pump house repairs and maintenance are the responsibility of the Operator. What repairs are needed and is there a cost estimate available?
There are no repairs needed at this time.  Operator will be responsible for all future repairs and maintenance during the term of the Operating Agreement.

4. It is indicated that the Operator shall be responsible for patching and striping the parking lot.  Will the Spring Meadow Inn Concessionaire be responsible for any of the associated costs since they will be using this as well?

The current Concession Agreement does not require the Concessionaire of Spring Meadow Inn to contribute toward the costs of patching and striping the parking lot and the Department does not have the authority to amend that agreement because it was publicly bid with specific terms that did not include responsibility for the parking lot.  The Operator shall therefore be responsible for the patching and striping of the parking lot.  If a new Concession Agreement includes a provision requiring the Concessionaire to contribute toward the repair and maintenance of the parking lot, then the Operator and Concessionaire will split these costs for the duration of the new Concession Agreement or Operating Agreement, whichever expires or terminates first.
1.3.2
Additional Issues with Existing Structures and Facilities
5. It is indicated that the cart paths adjacent to #14 green and hole #15 are in need of repair and will be the responsibility of the Department subject to funding.  What happens if the funding is not approved?  How will the paths be fixed?
Fixing the cart paths will be Operator’s responsibility if funding is not available to the Department for the repairs. The repairs that the Department has committed to making, subject to available funding, involve re-routing cart and pedestrian traffic to another bridge because of damage from flooding.

6. Sand bunker reconstruction can be very expensive and time consuming.  What is the expected time line for this job?  Why is the cost an Operator expense?  At this time it is not possible to determine the extent of repairs and reconstruction needed (due to snow cover).  What concessions will be made to determine this at a later date?
The Department is not requiring Operator to reconstruct sand bunkers, but it may be in Operator’s best interest to continue with the repairs that the Department has been making.  The repairs are cosmetic in nature, and are not related to safety concerns.  
7. It may not be possible to determine the extent of repairs needed for the netting on holes #8, 12 and 17.  What concessions can be made for this?  What is this cost an Operator expense?

New netting is necessary for these holes.  The cost is an Operator expense because the Department does not believe it will have sufficient time to make the repair prior to the changeover to a new operator.  The existing netting is torn and ripped, but the poles do not need repair or replacement.  If the Department has the time to replace the netting prior to Operator taking over management of the golf course, it will do so.  If the Department does not have sufficient time to replace the netting, it will leave any leftover netting it has to Operator.

1.3.3
Irrigiation System
8. What is the extent of the damage to the isolation valves that do not work?  Why is this cost an Operator expense?  At this time it is not possible to determine the extent of repairs and reconstruction needed (due to snow).  What concessions will be made to determine this at a later date?
The isolation valves are 25 years old and should be replaced rather than repaired.  The Department would not require Operator to repair or replace the isolation valves, but Operator will have the discretion to do so.  The malfunctioning valves do not impact the operation, as leaks in the irrigation system can be repaired by shutting down the entire irrigation system.  (Properly functioning isolation valves would allow the repair of minor leaks without shutting down the entire system.)  Repairs or replacement of isolation valves will be Operator’s expense because the Department does not have funding for this.  
9. Regarding the 12 to18 irrigation heads that have electrical issues, what incentive does the Department have to repair them if, in fact, it will be the responsibility of the Operator at the time of the effective date [of the Operating Agreement]?
The Department wishes to ease the changeover to private operation of the golf course as much as it can within the limits of its available resources, including funding and personnel.  It has committed to repairing the irrigation heads if it has the personnel to do so prior to the effective date of the Operating Agreement.
10. What happens as additional repairs and/or major overhauls are needed for the irrigation system?  How will the Department handle this?

The Operator will be responsible for all repairs and major overhauls of the irrigation system.

1.3.4
Water Usage

11. While the total diversion of water usage is clear, what accommodations can be made for unusual drought conditions, like in 2010 when potentially more water is needed to keep the course from incurring serious damage?

If the Operator wanted to apply to the Department of Environmental Protection to amend the water allocation permit for Spring Meadow Golf Course, it may be do so, at its sole expense.  The golf course has not exceeded its annual allocation during the past seven years (i.e., during the tenure of its current manager).  
1.4 Equipment
12. It will be important for the Operator to inspect all equipment sooner than later to determine the extent of the life of the equipment and the need for new equipment.  Will this be possible?
Yes.  Prospective bidders can inspect the equipment at the mandatory bidders meeting and by appointment prior to the proposal deadline, by contacting Marci Green at 609-633-7575.

1.5 Taxes, Revenues and Operating Expenses

13. It is indicated that the Operator shall be required to pay all operating expenses, including utilities and taxes.  Can we assume this refers to sales taxes and not property taxes?

Although the Golf Course Property is tax exempt, some municipalities tax other privately managed, State-owned golf courses pursuant to N.J.S.A.  54:4-1.10.
1.5.1
Utility Costs

14. Are there any other options that allow for a provision to have the Concessionaire pay for electrical service for the six lights in the parking lot and driveway?  This seems to be unilaterally unfair.  The same question applies to the water usage.
The Department understands the concerns raised in the question but is currently unable to require the concessionaire of Spring Meadow Inn to share the electrical costs for the lights in the parking lot and driveway and water usage because the Concession Agreement was publicly bid with specific terms that did not include these responsibilities.  The Department set the terms of the Concession Agreement before it knew it would be publicly bidding a separate agreement for the management and operation of the golf course.  The Department intends to address this issue in future concession agreements. 
1.5.2 Expenses and Revenue (Exhibit D2)
15. I would like clarification on allocations to expense line item 47, rentals ($61,128.28) and golf cart lease ($53,496)? What else?
Item 47 is an Object Code in the expense summary. In addition to the golf cart lease, it also includes recurring rental of items such as equipment parts cleaner, portable sanitary units located on the golf course, and welding tanks.
1.5.3 
Parking Lot
16. Please define “upkeep” of the parking lot.
Upkeep means general cleaning and maintenance, including repairing potholes.

1.6.3
Gift Certificates

17. It is stated that there were 282 gift certificates issued by the Department.  What is the total value?

The total value of the gift certificates is approximately $6,500, but this estimate may include some certificates that have already been redeemed.  Rental abatements for redeemed gift certificates will be based on the State’s fee at the time the certificate was sold.

1.8
Key Events

18. When does the Department plan on awarding the contract?
The Department’s goal is to award the contract within 30 days of the bid deadline and have a fully executed Operating Agreement by the second week of April.
4.2
Proposal Delivery and Identification
19. What is the bid identification number?
Bidders do not need to place a bid identification number on their proposals.

General Questions
20.
What tee time reservation system does the Department currently use for booking 
tee times?  Will this be available for use by the Operator?  If there is no current 
tee time reservation system in place, please explain how tee times are booked.


The Department does not use an automated or electronic reservation system. 
Reservations are accepted seven days in advance by calling into the Pro Shop. No 
deposit or credit card is required to hold the tee time. The Operator will be able 
to implement its own reservation system..
21.
Does the Department use any specific POS system in the Pro Shop?  If so, will 
this be available for use by the Operator?  If not, what has been used to date?

The Pro Shop uses Simple Retailer, v.6, an antiquated DOS program.  The 
Department can make it available for use by the Operator.

 
22.
A review of the expense budget and actual expenditures reveals a final accounting 
but no detail as to what each line item consists of.  Please provide a breakdown as 
to what each of the following line items consist of:


a.  
12S  Park Seasonal Services:  

Expenses for Seasonal Pro Shop and Maintenance Employees

b.
21  Printing and Office Supplies

Stationery, ink toners, pens, envelopes, etc.

c.
22  Vehicular

Automotive batteries, filters, oil, tires, gasoline and diesel fuel


d.
24  Household and Clothing

Cleaning supplies, paper products, uniforms for permanent employees

e.
26  Other Materials and Supplies


Pro Shop merchandise (golf balls, gloves, clubs, etc…) and golf course fertilizers, fungicides, herbicides and pesticides

f.
35  Household and Security

Trash removal, septic pumping, security monitoring


g.
36  Professional Services

Credit card vendors (VISA, AMX, Discover, Mastercard)


h.
38  Other Services

Membership fees for:  New Jersey State Golf Association and Handicapping Service, Golf Course Superintendents Association of NJ and America and New Jersey Turfgrass Association


i.
40  Maintenance of Building and Grounds


Materials and supplies used on the golf course (bunker sand, topdressing, tee and green supplies); materials, supplies and services used in normal maintenance of buildings ( painting, maintenance of heating units, cleaning of buildings)


j.
41  Maintenance of Equipment

Supplies, parts, and materials used in the normal maintenance and repair of golf course equipment
k. 47  Rent-Other

Golf cart contract, portable sanitary units, welding tanks, and parts equipment cleaner for maintenance
23.
Why were there 890 more rounds (27,886 vs. 26,996) in 2009 when compared to 
2010 but yet revenue in 2009 was $15,522 less than 2010 ($671,385 in 2009 
compared to $686,907 in 2010?)


The increase in revenue between FY09 and FY10 was generated from Green Fees 
and Rentals.  
24.
Does the Department require that the pro shop be staffed with anyone possessing 
PGA credentials?  For example, many clubs today mandate that the person in 
charge on-site be a Class A PGA Golf Professional.

The Department will not require the Pro Shop to be staffed with anyone possessing PGA credentials.  That decision is within the discretion of the Operator. 

25. Does the Department desire, mandate or wish to have golf lessons made available to the general public?

The Department does not mandate that golf lessons are made available to the public.  That decision is within the discretion of the Operator and should be described in the Operational Management Plan.
26.
We reviewed the current rates for greens fees.  Are there provisions for 
memberships and if so, what are the current rates?  Is there a resident’s card or 
county card people can sign up for similar to the county courses at discounted 
rates?
The Department does not offer memberships or discount cards.  

Because this is a State-owned course, rather than a county-owned course, the Department would probably not approve discounted rates for county residents.

Please refer to Section 4.4.3.3 of the Request for Proposal (RFP), which requires that the bidder’s Operational Management Plan identify a suggested fee schedule for all services, membership and course usage. As stated in the RFP, all applicable fees will be subject to the Department’s review and ultimate approval and should be comparable to those charged by other public golf courses in the area.  
27.
Can the course be open through the winter months (weather permitting)?  If not, 
what are the requirements for days of operation throughout the year?

The golf course can be open during the winter months, as the Department has not set any limits on the months of operation in the Request for Proposal.  Bidders’ Operational Management Plans (Section 4.4.3.3) should identify proposed hours of operation and months of operation.  
28.
Will the course be allowed to close for outings?  (Assumed to take place on slow 
days like Mondays.)

The Department would allow the course to be closed for outings.  Plans for 
closing the course and outings should be addressed in the “course usage” section 
of an Operational Management Plan ( Section 4.4.3.3 of the Request for 
Proposal).  
29.
What fee does the Department receive from the operator of Centerton Golf 
Course?

The operator of Centerton Golf Course pays the Department $105,000 annually, plus 15 percent of total gross revenue above $900,000.  Copies of the agreement are available upon request by contacting Marci Green, Administrator of the Office of Leases at 609-633-7575 or marci.green@dep.state.nj.us.  This fee was established through a public bidding procedure.
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